

โดรงการ การเรียนการสอนเพื่อเสริมประสบการณ์

ชื่อโครงการ	Comparison of PM _{2.5} concentrations in an indoor fitness			
	center and an outdoor gym within Chulalongkorn University			
ซื่อนิสิต	Mister Sorakit Boonwirut			
กาดวิชา	Environmental Science			

<mark>ปีการศึกษา</mark> 2018

บทคัดย่อและแฟ้มข้อมูลฉบับเต็มของโครงงานทางวิชาการที่ให้บริการในคลังปัญญาจุฬาฯ (CUIR)

เป็นแฟ้มข้อมูลของนิสิตเจ้าของโครงงานทางวิชาการที่ส่งผ่านทางคณะที่สังกัด The abstract and full text of senior projects in Chulalongkorn University Intellectual Repository(CUIR) are the senior project authors' files submitted through the faculty.

SENIOR PROJECT

Project Title	Comparison of $\ensuremath{PM_{2.5}}$ concentrations in an indoor fitness center					
	and an outdoor gym within Chulalongkorn University					
Student Name	Mister Sorakit Boonwirut	Student ID	583 33497 23			
Department	Environmental Science					
Academic Year	2018					

Comparison of PM_{2.5} concentrations in an indoor fitness center and an outdoor gym within Chulalongkorn University

การเปรียบเทียบปริมาณฝุนละออง PM_{2.5} ในอากาศของศูนยออกกำลังกายในรมและโรงยิมกลางแจง ภายในจุฬาลงกรณิมหาวิทยาลัย

Sorakit Boonwirut

A Senior Project Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the

Degree of Bachelor of Science Program in Environmental Science Faculty of Science,

Chulalongkorn University, Academic Year 2018

Project Title	Comparison of PM _{2.5} concentrations in an indoor fitness center
	and an outdoor gym within Chulalongkorn University
Student Name	Mister Sorakit Boonwirut Student ID 583 33497 23
Project Advisor	Chidsanuphong Chart-asa, Ph.D.
Project Co-advisor	Assistant Professor Pasicha Chaikaew, Ph.D.
Department	Environmental Science
Academic Year	2018

Accepted by the Department of Environmental Science, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University in Partial Fulfilment of the Requirements for the Bachelor's Degree

)and de

Head of the Department of Environmental Science

(Professor Dr. Wanida Jinsart, Ph.D.)

PROJECT COMMITTEE

(Associate Professor Nuta Supakata, Ph.D.)

.....

Chairman

(Assistant Professor Pantana Tor-ngern, Ph.D.)

(Assistant Professor Pasicha Chaikaew, Ph.D.)

vidsomphony (Juart-asa

(Chidsanuphong Chart-asa, Ph.D.)

Committee

Project Co-advisor

Project Advisor

หันขอ	การเปรียบเทียบปริมาณ์ฝุ่นละออง PM _{2.5} ในอากาศของศูนยออกกำลังกาย
	ในรมและโรงยิมกลางแจงภายในจุฬาลงกรณมหาวิทยาลัย
โดย	นายสรกฤษณ์ บุญวิรัฒน์ รหัสประจำตัวนิสิต 583 33497 23
อาจาธยที่ปรึกษาหลัก	ดร.ชิษณุพมศ ชาติอาสา
อาจาธยที่ปรึกษกรวม	นุขวยศาสตราจาธย ดร.ภศิชา ไชยแกว
ภาควิชา	วิทยาศาสตรสิ่งแวดลอม
ปการศึกษา	2561

บทคัดยอ

การออกกำลังกายสามารถแบงตามสภาพแวดสอมใด 2 ประเภท ไดแก่ สภาพแวดสอม ภายในอาคารและสภาพแวดสอมภายนอกอาคาร การพิจารณาเลือกใชสถานออกกำลังกายที่มี สภาพแวดสอมตางกันในแตละช่วงเวลาจึงมีความสำคัญ โครงงานวิจัยนี้มีวัตถุประสงค์เพื่อ 1.ตรวจหา โค่าความเข่มขนของปริมาณ์ผุ่นละออง PM_{2.5} ในอากาศของศูนยออกกำลังกายในรมและโรงยิมกลาง แจงภายในจุฬาลงกรณมหาวิทยาลัย 2.หาความสัมพันธระหว่าง PM_{2.5}, อุณหภูมิและความชื้นสัมพัทธ 3.เปรียบเทียบปริมาณความเขมขนของ PM_{2.5} ระหว่างศูนยออกกำลังกายในรมและโรงยิมกลางแจง ในช่วงเวลาที่แตกต่างกัน วิธีการตรวจวัดคุณภาพอากาศจะดำเนินการโดยอุปกรณวัดคุณภาพอากาศ ปีชื่อ Bosean Electronic รุ่น LY062701 จากนั้นทำการเก็บขอมูลในศูนยออกกำลังกายในรมและ โรงยิม กลางแจงในวันและเวลาเดียวกัน โดยเริ่มตั้งแต่วันที่ 1 เมษายนถึงวันที่ 26 เมษายน พ.ศ.2562 เป็นเวลาทั้งสิ้น 12 วัน โดยในแต่ละวันจะเก็บทั้งหมด 3 ช่วงเวลา คือ 8.00 น. – 9.00 น., 13.00 น. - 14.00 น. และ 17.00 น. - 18.00 น. จากนั้นนำปอมูลที่รวบรวมใดมาวิเคราะบิดวยสถิติเชิง พรรณนา. สัมประสิทธิ์สหสัมพันธแบบเพียรสันและวิเคราะหความแปรปรวนแบบสองทาง จาก การศึกษาพปวโปคาของ PM_{2.5} ในอากาศบริเวณศูนยออกกำลังกายในรมและโรงยิมกลางแจงมี ความสัมพันธิกันอย่างมีนัยสำคัญ (p-value < 0.01) เนื่องจากเกิดการแทรกซึมจากภายนอก (Infiltration) และยังพบวาสภาพแวดสอมภายในอาคารและภายนอกอาคารมีผลต่อปริมาณความ แขมขนของ PM_{2.5} อย่างมีนัยสำคัญ (p-value < 0.05) โดยภายนอกอาคารมีปริมาณ PM_{2.5} มากปว่า ภายในอาคาร ดังนั้นจึงควรเขาใชบริการสถานออกกำลังกายภายในอาคารหากพิจารณาในเรื่องการรับ สัมผัสผุนละออง PM_{2.5}

คำสำคัญ - ผุนละออง PM_{2.5}, สถานออกกำลังกาย, สภาพแวดสอมภายในอาคาร, สภาพแวดสอม ภายนอกอาคาร

Project Title	Comparison of $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations in an indoor fitness cente			
	and an outdoor gym within Chulalongkorn University			
Student Name	Mister Sorakit Boonwirut Student ID 583 33497 23			
Project Advisor	Chidsanuphong Chart-asa, Ph.D.			
Project Co-advisor	Assistant Professor Pasicha Chaikaew, Ph.D.			
Department	Environmental Science			
Academic Year	2018			

Abstract

Exercise environments can be classified into 2 main types of indoor setting, and outdoor setting. The two settings then become a factor to consider of which to choose over another, considering PM_{2.5} concentration in the atmosphere. This project aimed to i) measure the concentrations of PM_{2.5} in the environment of indoor fitness center and outdoor gym in Chulalongkorn University, ii) observe the correlations between PM_{2.5}, temperature, and relative humidity, iii) compare PM_{2.5} concentrations between indoor fitness center and outdoor gym in the different times of the day. The project is carried out by measuring the quality of the atmospheric air from an indoor fitness center and an outdoor gym precisely at the same time, using the air quality detector device Bosean Electric (LY062701). Starting from the 1^{st} of April 2019 until the 26^{th} of April 2019 for 12 days, three sessions a day: 08:00 - 09:00 A.M., 01:00 - 02:00 P.M., and 05:00 - 06:00 P.M... The data collected were then analyzed using descriptive statistic and Pearson's correlation coefficient, and two-way ANOVA method. The analysis illustrated that the correlation between atmospheric PM_{2.5} concentration of indoor fitness center and outdoor gym is caused by infiltration from the outdoor air. Therefor the outdoor atmospheric PM_{2.5} concentration affects the atmospheric PM_{2.5} concentration of the indoor fitness center. Consequently, indoor fitness center is more favorable to those who concerns about $PM_{2.5}$ exposure.

Keywords: $\ensuremath{\mathsf{PM}_{2.5}},$ Fitness center, Indoor environment, Outdoor environment

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

First and foremost, I would like to thank my research supervisors, Chidsanuphong Chart-asa, Ph.D., and Assistant Professor Pasicha Chaikaew, Ph.D., Department of Environmental Sciences, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University, for their assistance, and their dedicated involvement in every step throughout the process.

I would also like to show my gratitude towards my project chairman Associate Professor Nuta Supakata, Ph.D. and my project committee, Assistant Professor Pantana Tor-ngern, Ph.D. and am grateful for their comments, and recommendations.

This project would have been impossible without the aid and the support from the academic staffs including CU sport center staff--Mrs. Sasatorn Phuteng for authorizing the use of location, and laboratory staffs--Mrs. Ketsara Songsod and Miss Pansuree Jariyawichit for providing all the necessary equipment for the research.

Most importantly, none of this could have happen without my family and my friends. I would like to thank Miss Vanatchaporn Sayanwisuttikam, who offered her assistance throughout my sampling period, Miss Emmika Lounporn, for persistent encouragement. Lastly, my wholehearted thanks to Miss Kornwasa Chantawongvilai and Miss Kritchamon Tanaponglumlerd who are the foundation to my good health and wellbeing. This senior project stands as a testament to your unconditional love and encouragement.

۷

CONTENTS

Page
Abstract in ThaiI
Abstract in EnglishIII
ACKNOWLEDGMENTSV
CONTENTSVI
LIST OF TABLESVIII
LIST OF FIGURESIX
Chapter I INTRODUCTION1
1.1 Introduction1
1.2 Objectives4
1.3 Outcome of research4
Chapter II LITERATURE REVIEWS5
2.1 Fine particulate matter (PM _{2.5})5
2.2 Sources of PM _{2.5} 5
2.3 Health effects of PM _{2.5} 6
2.4 The relationship between indoor $PM_{2.5}$, outdoor $PM_{2.5}$ and
physical activity7
Chapter III METHODOLOGY10
3.1 Study area10

F	'age
3.1.1 Fitness center (CU sports complex)	.10
3.1.2 Chula outdoor gym	.12
3.2 Study framework	.13
3.3 Instrument validation	.13
3.4 Measurement of indoor and outdoor $PM_{2.5}$ and environmental	
factors	15
3.5 Data analysis	16
Chapter IV RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	17
4.1 Instrument validity	17
4.2 Descriptive characteristics of measured $PM_{2.5}$ and environmental	
factors	19
4.3 Relationship between PM _{2.5} , temperature and relative humidity	23
4.4 Comparison of PM _{2.5} concentrations in different locations and	
times	25
Chapter V CONCLUSIONS	27
References	28
BIOGRAPHY	36

	Page
Table 3.1 PM2.5 detection of the Bosean Electric air quality detector	.16
Table 4.1 Concentrations of $PM_{2.5}$ in an indoor and outdoor gym	
environment (µg/m3)	.20
Table 4.2 Values of temperature in an indoor and outdoor gym	
environment (°C)	20
Table 4.3 Amounts of relative humidity level in an indoor and outdoor gym	
environment (%)	20
Table 4.4 PM _{2.5} , temperature and relative humidity correlation matrix	.23
Table 4.5 Levene's test of equality of error variances	25
Table 4.6 Two-way ANOVA	25

Page
Figure 3.1 Diagram of indoor fitness center, which the $PM_{2.5}$ detector
device is located in the center of the right inner chamber11
Figure 3.2 Cu fitness center facilities within an indoor gym environment12
Figure 3.3 Location of Chula outdoor gym and indoor fitness center12
Figure 3.4 Chula outdoor gym facilities and outdoor environment13
Figure 3.5 Study framework14
Figure 3.6 The Bosean Electric air quality detector model LY06270115
Figure 3.7 The measurement of outdoor air quality15
Figure 4.1 Comparisons between air quality data collected from Bosean
air quality detector and PCD, which the x-axis stands for the
data from Bosean and the y-axis stands for the data from PCD17
Figure 4.2 Comparisons between air quality data collected from Bosean
air quality detector and BMA, which the x-axis stands for the

data from Bosean and the y-axis stands for the data from BMA....18

Figure 4.3 Concentrations of $\ensuremath{\mathsf{PM}_{2.5}}\xspace$, temperature and relative humidity in

an indoor gym environment	22
Figure 4.4 Concentrations of $PM_{2.5}$, temperature and relative humidity in	
an outdoor gym environment	22

CHAPTER I

INTRODUCTION

1.1. Introduction

Growing trend towards health and wellness across the world driving the demand for wellness industry. Between 2015 and 2017, the global wellness industry grew by 12.8%, from \$3.7 trillion to \$4.2 trillion (Global Wellness Institute, 2018). The growth is nearly twice as fast as the global economic growth. In the United States, the health and fitness industry growth is by at least 3 - 4% annually for the past ten years with an average investment of \$30 billion, and shows no signs of slowing down (Forbes, 2018). For the top ten countries with leading growth for wellness tourism, Thailand ranked 10th on the global list and 4th among Asia-Pacific countries (Global Wellness Institute, 2018). This trend clearly shows the willingness of people to place more value on health and wellness which will also grow exponentially along with the attention to do physical activity. The popularity of physical workout trends differ across groups of people. The reasons include the desire to improve well-being, the choice of a healthy lifestyle, the increase of ageing and wealthy population, the need to prevent diseases such as cardiovascular and respiratory problems, and the reduction of the risk of cancer and diabetes.

The two basic exercise environments indoor and outdoor are under an ongoing debate whether which is the best for exercising. The bright sides of exercising outdoors include improvement of mental well-being by connecting physical-mental exercise with nature (Coon, et al., 2011), reduction of cortisol, a hormone that triggers stress (Logan & Selhub, 2012). Heighten strengths and ability to endure longer workouts (Fellin, et al., 2010; Kerr, et al., 2012), vitamin D intake, and free of charge are benefits from outdoor exercise. The downsides out the outdoors are weather hazards and exposure to air pollutants and possible allergens, especially in a city. In contrast to exercising indoors, the advantages of indoor include controlled environment, availability of group classes with a safe and effective workout, and access to facilities. Disadvantages of indoor gyms are service charge and possible exposure to indoor air pollution. However, in both environments, athletes and individuals can be at risk when they practice exercise in polluted environments. The reason is because (1) when the minute ventilation increases, the quantity of inhaled pollutants increase proportionally, (2) most air is taken into the body through oral passageway rather than nasal mechanisms, and (3) the increased airflow velocity carries pollutants deeper into the respiratory tract (Carlisle & Sharp, 2001). The total amount of particulate matter deposited in the respiratory tract during moderate exercise may be up to five times higher than at the rest, increasing along with the intensity of physical activity (Daigle et al., 2003). From the previous studies, ambient fine particulate matter(PM_{2.5}) levels are correlated with premature mortality and other health effects. Urban populations spend a majority of their time in indoor environments, and thus exposures are modified by building envelopes. Ambient particles have been found to penetrate indoors very efficiently (penetration efficiency $P \approx 1.0$), where they are slowly removed by deposition, adsorption, and other mechanisms.

In spite of the seriousness of air pollutions, indoor and outdoor air quality studies have been focused almost particularly on commercial buildings (e.g., Challoner & Gill, 2014; Seppanen, Fisk, & Mendell, 1999), residential buildings (e.g., Chao & Wong, 2002; Massey, Masih, Kulshrestha, Habil, & Taneja, 2009; Zhou, et al., 2016), school (e.g., Braniš, Řezáčová, & Domasová, 2005; Roosbroeck, et al., 2007; Fromme, et al., 2008; Wichmann, Lind, Nilsson, & Bellander, 2010) and hospital (e.g., Wang, Bi, Sheng, & Fu, 2006); yet the indoor and outdoor air quality comparison programs accomplished in sports centers are remarkably insufficient. The indoor and outdoor generated PM_{2.5} are currently not well understood, and require information on concentrations and exposure levels. Therefore, the current study aims to quantify PM_{2.5} concentrations in indoor and outdoor exercise environments to obtain data for targeting protection against the risks of fine PM exposure. The results can as well provide data for athletes and individuals for exercising alternatives.

Two sports facilities, belonging to the Chulalongkorn University, Thailand, were chosen to carry out the measuring program: Fitness center and Chula outdoor gym. Fitness center is located on the second floor of the CU sports complex building. The

3

Chula outdoor gym is built in a public park in Chulalongkorn University near the CU sports complex building.

1.2 Objectives

- **1.2.1** To measure concentrations of PM_{2.5} in indoor fitness center and outdoor gym environments within Chulalongkorn University.
- **1.2.2** To investigate relationships between PM_{2.5}, temperature, and relative humidity.
- **1.2.3** To compare PM_{2.5} concentrations between indoor fitness center and outdoor gym environments in different periods of time.

1.3 Outcome of research

- **1.3.1** For people to use this study as an important factor to consider when appoint a sport center.
- **1.3.2** For sport center proprietor to use this study as a data to develop air ventilation in their own place.

CHAPTER II

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Fine particulate matter (PM_{2.5})

Fine particle is a mixture of solid particles and liquid droplets. These particles are very small and are measured in micrometers (µm). PM_{2.5} particles are smaller than 2.5 micrometers (0.0025 mm) in diameter. Often described as fine particles. The concentration of all sizes of particulate matter was found to be highest in winter season due to increase human activities and more space heating in indoors and due to low windspeed and high humidity in outdoors in comparison with other seasons. There was a strong correlation between indoor and outdoor particulate at both the sites. Health problems in occupants of the houses with higher concentrations of the fine particulate matter were more prominent. Household activities like cooking on stoves, indoor smoking and outdoor vehicular traffic, and garbage burning were found to be the major sources of particulate emissions indoor as well as outdoors (Massey, Kulshrestha, Masih, & Taneja, 2012).

2.2 Sources of PM_{2.5}

Due to air exchange between indoors and outdoors, chemical component of indoor PM_{2.5} is related to indoor origins and outdoor infiltrations. Indoor origins include smoking, cooking, fuel combustion, human activities, and burning incenses. Whereas

outdoor infiltrations consist of outdoor penetration and ventilation (natural and mechanical) (Li et al., 2017).

Yu et al. (2013) studied in China and found seven sources and their contributions to the total $PM_{2.5}$ mass which were identified and quantified. These include secondary sulphur– 13.8 µg/m³, 26.5%; vehicle exhaust– 8.9 µg/m³, 17.1%; fossil fuel combustion– 8.3 µg/m3, 16%; road dust– 6.6 µg/m³, 12.7%; biomass burning– 5.8 µg/m³, 11.2%; soildust– 5.4 µg/m³, 10.4%; and metal processing– 3.1 µg/m³, 6.0%. Fugitive dusts (including soil dust and road dust) showed the highest contribution of 20.7 µg/m³ in the spring, doubling those in other seasons. Besides, motor vehicles, power plant emissions and bushfires are all major sources of fine particles.

2.3 Health effects of PM_{2.5}

Particulate air pollution is consistently and independently related to the most serious effects, including lung cancer and other cardiopulmonary mortality. There is a general association that the smaller the size of particles, the greater the health effects. In terms of fine particulate air pollution (PM_{2.5}), causes about 3% of mortality from cardiopulmonary disease, about 5% of mortality from cancer of the trachea, bronchus, and lung, and about 1% of mortality from acute respiratory infections in children under 5 years, worldwide. This amounts to about 0.8 million (1.2%) premature deaths and 6.4 million (0.5%) years of life lost (YLL). This burden occurs predominantly in

developing countries; 65% in Asia alone. These estimates consider only the impact of air pollution on mortality (i.e., years of life lost) and not morbidity (i.e., years lived with disability), due to limitations in the epidemiologic database. If air pollution multiplies both incidence and mortality to the same extent (i.e., the same relative risk), then the disability-adjusted life years (DALYs) for cardiopulmonary disease increase by 20% worldwide (Cohen, et al., 2005). The influence of $PM_{2.5}$ is associated with concentration, component, size, human age, and exposure time (Li et al., 2017). This implies that the longer the cumulative lag, the greater the adverse impact of $PM_{2.5}$ to respiratory mortality.

2.4 The relationship between indoor $PM_{2.5}$, outdoor $PM_{2.5}$, and physical activity

In Agra, India. Massey et al. (2009) measured PM 2.5 μ m, 1.0 μ m, 0.5 μ m and 0.25 μ m inside and outside 14 residential homes located in different microenvironment during a six-month period (October 2007–March 2008). Particulate mass concentrations were measured using Grimm aerosol spectrometer for 24 h inside and outside the homes located in roadside, rural and urban area, along with the field survey study done in the same region. The average I/O ratios for PM_{2.5}, PM_{1.0}, PM_{0.5}, and PM_{0.25} in roadside and rural areas were close to or above 1.00 and less than 1.00 for urban areas. The I/O ratios obtained were linked to the indoor activities using occupant's diary entries. The positive values of correlation coefficient (r) also indicated the indoor

concentrations of particulate matter were correlated with the corresponding outdoor concentrations.

Schools are considered micro-environments characterized by high PM concentrations, especially when the buildings are located near highly trafficked roads (Fromme et al., 2007; Diapouli et al., 2008; Buonanno et al., 2011a; Canha et al., 2011). PM concentrations in schools are higher than outdoor ones due to dust resuspension caused by the activity of the students (Brunekreef et al., 1997; Fromme et al., 2008). Here, resuspension is the process by which particles are reintroduced into the air from a surface on which they were previously deposited. Although the first scientific studies of resuspension processes focused on soil erosion and the related transport of dust, recent studies have found that particle resuspension in indoor micro- environments could be an important factor in indoor air quality evaluation (Kim et al., 2010).

Buonanno et al. (2012) investigated the exposure of children to particle resuspension in 12 school gyms for a 3-month experiment. The concentrations of different particle sizes in these gyms were compared to outdoor values. The effect on coarse particles was found to be the most significant in the range of 1.5 to 8.9 mg/min. The average concentrations of coarse PM from 12 school gyms were 4.8±2.0 times higher than the outdoor background values.

Ramos et al. (2014) conducted research about exposure to indoor air pollutants during physical activity in 11 fitness centers. The average particulate matters varied

8

across studied gyms. Exceeded PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ were found in two gyms. An increase in levels of PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ when the gym spaces were occupied during exercise classes, implying that the resuspension of dust is originated from the practitioners of physical activity.

Alves et al. (2013) compared indoor air quality in two university sports facilities. The findings revealed that in the fronton, PM_{10} ranged from 38 to 43 µg/m³ during the occupancy periods. Much higher values were recorded in the gymnasium between 154 and 198 µg/m³. The particles value lower than 20 µg/m³ were measured on weekend in both sports facilities.

CHAPTER III

METHODOLOGY

3.1 Study area

3.1.1 Fitness center (CU sports complex)

The CU Sports Complex is a fully functional sports facility where students, faculty, and the staff can experience and enjoy a variety of sports. The building has specific areas for badminton, swimming, boxing, judo, karate, taekwondo, yoga, aerobics, volleyball, and basketball, along with a fitness center equipped with full range of exercise machines and sports equipment. The complex also serves as a venue for a number of sports competitions and trainings. Additional services, provided to CU students and staff free of charge and with paid membership for the public, include the access to the university's stadium, tennis courts, indoor sports gyms, golf driving range, golf putting area, beach volleyball court, 25-meter and 50-meter swimming pools, and outdoor gym areas. The fitness center sits on the second floor of CU sports complex building (Figure 3.2). The global dimensions of the square room is 36 meters by 36 meters and 3.5 m in height. The Indoor fitness is essentially a vast square shaped room divided into 4 smaller square chambers (Figure 3.1). The two chambers on the left are completely connected, without a wall, making them one spacious fitness area. The

right inner chamber is connected to the left fitness area with a door that is normally opened as a result causing the air from the right inner chambers to flow rather freely to the left fitness area. Meanwhile, the outer right chamber is a separate aerobic studio which is connected to the left fitness area with a rarely opened door blocking the air from the outer right chamber to behave in such manner.

Sources of $PM_{2.5}$ in the studied indoor fitness center theoretically are infiltration and opening and closing of doors and windows. Given that there were no combustion occurring inside of the gym or only minimal combustion from motorized treadmills and other fitness equipment.



Figure 3.1 Diagram of the indoor fitness center, which the $PM_{2.5}$ detector device is located in the center of the right inner chamber.



Figure 3.2 CU fitness center facilities within an indoor gym environment

3.1.2 Chula outdoor gym

Chula outdoor gym is located 200 meters away from the CU sports complex building (Figure 3.3). The right trapezoid shaped area contains various outdoor fitness equipment (Figure 3.4) with the length of the parallel sides approximately at 30 and 13 meters, and width of 17.5 meters. The calculated area is 376.25 square meters.



Figure 3.3 Location of Chula outdoor gym and indoor fitness center



Figure 3.4 Chula outdoor gym facilities and outdoor environment

Sources of $PM_{2.5}$ of the studied outdoor gym mainly are vehicle exhaust and road dust.

3.2 Study framework

Figure 3.5 shows the project framework. The framework illustration includes the location, and session of where and when air data were collected, along with the method of data analysis. The data are strictly collected on weekdays as those data would be a good representation of data.

The data collection is from two locations, an indoor fitness center, and an outdoor gym. The data on both locations are collected in three sessions each day, each session is an hour long as follows: morning session: 8-9 A.M., afternoon session: 1-2 P.M., and evening session 5-6 P.M.

3.3 Instrument validation

To measure the validity of the air quality detector instrument for outdoor air pollution, we compared our air data to the data from Pollution Control Department (PCD), and Air Quality and Noise Management Division, Department of Environment,



Figure 3.5 Study framework

Bangkok Metropolitan Administration (BMA), by implementing coefficient of determination method.

3.4 Measurement of indoor and outdoor PM_{2.5} and environmental factors

The brand Bosean Electric provides affordable air quality sensors and detectors. The Bosean Electric air quality detector model LY062701 (Figure 3.6) was used in the measurement of PM_{2.5}, temperature and relative humidity of both indoor gym and outdoor fitness centers.



Figure 3.6 The Bosean Electric air quality detector model LY062701



Figure 3.7 The measurement of outdoor air quality

The air samples were collected at both fitness centers in the morning (8–9 A.M.), afternoon (1–2 P.M.), and evening (5–6 P.M.) on weekdays from Apr1, 2019 to Apr 26, 2019. During the sampling, the sampling kit is at the location which did the minimum interruption to exercising activities and is nearest to the center of the fitness centers with at least 30 centimeters from any air flow obstacle (Figure 3.7). The sampling range is at the breathing zone of a standing person (i.e., about 150 centimeters). The sampling intervals are 60 minutes for each sampling period.

PM _{2.5} detection					
Detection principle	Laser scattering principle				
Detection time	3 seconds				
Detection method	Concentration (per liter)				
Detection range	0 – 999 µg/m³				

Table 3.1 PM_{2.5} detection of the Bosean Electric air quality detector

Table 3.1 shows the $PM_{2.5}$ detection details of the Bosean Electric air quality detector. The detectable range of temperature is between -20°C and 70°C, and the detectable range of relative humidity is between 20% and 90%.

3.5 Data analysis

3.5.1 The basic characteristics of indoor parameters and outdoor parameters (i.e., PM_{2.5}, temperature, and relative humidity) were summarized by using descriptive statistics including minimum, maximum, mean, median, range, and standard deviation.

3.5.2 Pearson's correlation coefficients were calculated to determine whether the measured $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations of the indoor fitness center are in correlation with those of the outdoor gym or not.

3.5.3 Two-way ANOVA and post-hoc tests were performed to determine any statistical differences between the mean $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations of three sampling period for the indoor and outdoor environment.

CHAPTER IV

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Instrument validity



Figure 4.1 Comparisons between air quality data collected from Bosean air quality detector and PCD, which the x-axis stands for the data from Bosean and the y-axis stands for the data from PCD.



Figure 4.2 Comparisons between air quality data collected from Bosean air quality detector and BMA, which the x-axis stands for the data from Bosean and the y-axis stands for the data from BMA.

Figure 4.1 and Figure 4.2 show the relationship between the Bosean Electric air quality detector and air quality report from PCD, and BMA, respectively. For clarity, the correlation coefficients (in absolute value) that are \leq 0.35 are generally considered to represent low or weak correlations, the ones that are 0.36 to 0.67 are modest or moderate correlations, the ones that are 0.68 to 1.0 are strong and high, and the ones with R² coefficients \geq 0.90 very high correlations (Taylor, 1990).

Thus, Figure 4.1 and Figure 4.2 show moderate agreement of $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations between Bosean Electric air quality readings and air quality report from BMA. The orange (yellow) area is a factor-of-two envelope that indicates whether the compared data are more than twice as higher as one another. Although scatterplots and fit linear curve of the measured data from Bosean Electric and the data from PCD or BMA has low R^2 , which shows negative linear relationship, but The differences between the compare data are no higher than double the other data.

4.2 Descriptive characteristics of measured PM_{2.5} and environmental factors

In the indoor fitness center, the average $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations obtained during 8A.M.-9A.M., 1P.M.-2P.M., and 5P.M.-6P.M. are 7.91, 9.45, and 8.37 µg/m³. The average $PM_{2.5}$ average of outdoor gym are 18.27, 17.13, and 13.91 µg/m³ respectively to the time sessions of indoor fitness center (Table 4.1).

There is no accepted threshold limit for $PM_{2.5}$ on 1-hour average concentration. PCD in Thailand have developed guidelines for acceptable IAQ, recommending that $PM_{2.5}$ average concentration should be maintained at 50 µg/m³ during a 24-h time period and 25 µg/m³ for the annual mean. Environment Protection Authority Victoria (EPA Victoria) recommends a guideline for one-hour $PM_{2.5}$ amount, that it should not exceed 40 µg/m³. Any value higher than 40 µg/m³ would be considered as 'poor' or 'unhealthy for all.'

ΡM _{2.5} (μg/m ³)	8A.N	I9A.M.	1P.M2P.M.		5P.M6P.M.	
	Indoor	Outdoor	Indoor	Outdoor	Indoor	Outdoor
Max	20.00	41.00	22.00	50.00	18.00	30.00
Min	1.00	7.00	1.00	3.00	1.00	1.00
Mean	7.91	18.27	9.45	17.13	8.37	13.91
SD	3.68	7.17	4.60	8.87	4.00	5.85
Median	7.00	18.00	8.00	15.00	8.00	13.00
Range	19.00	34.00	21.00	47.00	17.00	29.00

Table 4.1 Concentrations of $PM_{2.5}$ in an indoor and outdoor gym environment (μ g/m³)

Table 4.2 Values of temperature in an indoor and outdoor gym environment (°C)

Temperature	8A.M9A.M.		1P.N	12P.M.	5P.M6P.M.	
(°C)	Indoor	Outdoor	Indoor	Outdoor	Indoor	Outdoor
Max	28.90	35.50	29.00	39.40	30.30	35.70
Min	22.00	24.40	19.60	28.50	20.60	27.20
Mean	26.43	29.99	25.29	32.50	26.58	31.74
SD	1.61	2.19	1.77	2.09	1.67	1.94
Median	26.60	29.90	25.60	32.40	26.55	31.80
Range	6.90	11.10	9.40	10.90	9.70	8.50

Table 4.3 Amounts of relative humidity level in an indoor and outdoor gym environment (%)

Relative	8A.N	19A.M.	1P.M2P.M.		5P.M6P.M.	
humidity (%)	Indoor	Outdoor	Indoor	Outdoor	Indoor	Outdoor
Max	60.00	84.00	71.00	71.00	66.00	72.00
Min	42.00	50.00	42.00	28.00	37.00	19.00
Mean	50.03	64.19	52.57	52.06	50.96	52.41
SD	3.73	6.79	5.16	8.52	5.47	9.95
Median	49.50	64.00	52.00	53.00	52.00	53.00
Range	18.00	34.00	29.00	43.00	29.00	53.00

Table 4.2 and Table 4.3 show the basic characteristics of temperature and relative humidity collected from indoor fitness center and outdoor gym.

The American National Standard Institute (ANSI)/American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) recommend a standardized thermal condition considering indoor environmental and personal factors called 'Thermal Environmental Conditions for Human Occupancy' (ANSI/ASHRAE 55-2013). Assuming slow air movement (less than 40 feet per minute) and 50% indoor relative humidity, the operative temperatures recommended by ASHRAE range from 68.5°F (20.3°C) to 75°F (23.9°C) in winter, and from 75°F (23.9°C) to 80.5°F (26.9°C) in summer. The difference in temperature ranges between each season is largely due to clothing selection. ASHRAE also recommends that indoor relative humidity be maintained at or below 65% (ANSI/ASHRAE 55-2013). The EPA recommends maintaining indoor relative humidity between 30% and 60% to reduce mold growth (EPA 2002).

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) suggest that appropriate relative humidity should stays in between 20% - 60%, The International Fitness Association (IFA) suggest an appropriate relative humidity in all areas should be in between 40% - 60%. The American College of Sports Medicine (ACSM) recommended the temperature should be in between 68F (20°C) to 72F (22.2°C), and IFA suggested temperature for aerobics, cardio, weight training, and pilates areas should be in between 65F (18.3°C) to 68F (20°C), and 65F (18.3°C) - 80F (26.7°C) for yoga.

21

Nonetheless, indoor environment can be easily changed by air conditioning, methods for making an outdoor environment comfortable are very limited. For the outdoor environment, the indoor comfort indices were sometimes applied (Honjo, 2009).



Figure 4.3 Concentrations of PM_{2.5}, temperature and relative humidity in an indoor gym environment



Figure 4.4 Concentrations of *PM*_{2.5}, temperature and relative humidity in an outdoor gym environment

The box plots in Figure 4.3 and Figure 4.4 show the statistics of concentrations of PM_{2.5}, temperature and relative humidity in an indoor gym environment and an outdoor gym environment. The boxes stretch from the lower quartile to the upper quartile values. The thin lines across the boxes represent the medians, and the crosses

represent the means. The "whiskers" on box plots extend from Q1 and Q3 to the most extreme data points. In turn, each of these outliers is represented by a mark. Among all the data, the data of each perimeters from the outdoor gym seem to have larger ranges compared to those of the indoor fitness center data

4.3 Relationship between PM_{2.5}, temperature and relative humidity

		T indoor	RH indoor	PM indoor	T outdoor	RH outdoor	PM outdoor
T indoor	Pearson Correlation	1	625**	015	074	.225	142
	Sig. (2-tailed)		.000	.934	.681	.209	.429
	N	33	33	33	33	33	33
RH indoor	Pearson Correlation	625**	1	.281	028	.270	.316
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.000		.113	.875	.128	.073
	N	33	33	33	33	33	33
PM_indoor	Pearson Correlation	015	.281	1	.385*	.029	.880**
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.934	.113		.027	.871	.000
	Ν	33	33	33	33	33	33
T_outdoor	Pearson Correlation	074	028	.385*	1	728**	.076
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.681	.875	.027		.000	.676
	Ν	33	33	33	33	33	33
RH_outdoor	Pearson Correlation	.225	.270	.029	728**	1	.252
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.209	.128	.871	.000		.158
	Ν	33	33	33	33	33	33
PM_outdoor	Pearson Correlation	142	.316	.880**	.076	.252	1
	Sig. (2-tailed)	.429	.073	.000	.676	.158	
	Ν	33	33	33	33	33	33

Table 4	4.4 PM _{2.5} ,	temperature	and rel	lative l	humidity	correl	ation	matrix
---------	-------------------------	-------------	---------	----------	----------	--------	-------	--------

**. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

*. Correlation is significant at the 0.05 level (2-tailed).

 $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations were correlated with both temperature and relative humidity (Table 4.4). The associations between the measured indoor $PM_{2.5}$ and outdoor $PM_{2.5}$ hold the strongest positive correlation (p = 0.880). According to Chen and Zhao (2011), outdoor air pollutants may intrude indoors by two main mechanisms: through opened windows or doors (natural ventilation) and by infiltration through cracks and leaks in the building envelope (the latter being uncontrolled and having a relatively low exchange rate). Therefore, the association could be related to the infiltration of ambient $PM_{2.5}$ and levels of indoor $PM_{2.5}$

The less significant of positive correlation were between the measured indoor $PM_{2.5}$ and outdoor temperature (p = 0.385). However, Hernandez, Berry, Wallis, & Poyner (2017) studied in New Zealand and found that temperature was observed to have a negative correlation with PM_{10} .

The correlation that were found to be negative is the measured of both indoor and outdoor temperature comparing with relative humidity (p = -0.625, p = -0.728, respectively). As relative humidity depends on air temperature. This means, if the water vapor remains the same as the temperature decreases, the relative humidity then increases, and vice versa. Colder air requires less moisture to become saturated as warmer air does (North Carolina Climate Office).

Lou, et al. (2017) studied in China and found that the very-dry (RH < 45%), dry (RH = 45–60%) and low-humidity (RH = 60–70%) conditions positively affected PM2.5 and exerted an accumulation effect, while the mid-humidity (RH = 70–80%), high-humidity (RH = 80–90%), and extreme-humidity (RH = 90–100%) conditions played a significant role in reducing particle concentrations.

4.4 Comparison of PM_{2.5} concentrations in different locations and

times

Table 4.5 Levene's test of equality of error variances

Levene's Test of Equality of Error Variances^a

Dependent	Variable:	ΡM
-----------	-----------	----

F	df1	df2	Sig.
1.144	5	60	.347

Tests the null hypothesis that the error variance of the dependent variable is equal across groups.

a. Design: Intercept + Time + Location + Time * Location

The SPSS returns
$$F = 1.144$$
 and $p = 0.347$ for Levene's test. As $p > 0.05$, equal

variances can be assumed (Table 4.5).

Dependent Variable:	PM					
	Type III Sum of					Partial Eta
Source	Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.	Squared
Corrected Model	1169.302ª	5	233.860	6.643	.000	.356
Intercept	10262.715	1	10262.715	291.504	.000	.829
Time	61.382	2	30.691	.872	.423	.028
Location	1014.151	1	1014.151	28.806	.000	.324
Time * Location	66.933	2	33.467	.951	.392	.031
Error	2112.368	60	35.206			
Total	13591.254	66				
Corrected Total	3281.670	65				

Table 4.6 Two-Way ANOVA

a. R Squared = .356 (Adjusted R Squared = .303)

There was no statistically significant difference between different period of times (p = 0.423), but there were statistically significant differences in mean PM_{2.5}

concentration between indoor fitness center and Chula outdoor gym (p < 0.05) (Table 4.6).

Further, there was no statistically significant interaction between the effects of times and locations on $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations (p = 0.392).

CHAPTER V

CONCLUSIONS

The average both temperature and relative humidity as well as $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations data collected from the outdoor gym environment were higher than the values collected from indoor fitness center. The relationship between the measured indoor $PM_{2.5}$ and outdoor $PM_{2.5}$ hold the strongest positive correlation. The correlation shows that the infiltration affects the levels of indoor $PM_{2.5}$, as there were only two sources of $PM_{2.5}$: the air from outside leaking in through infiltration and natural ventilation

A two-way ANOVA was conducted, examining the effect of times and locations on $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations. There was no statistically significant interaction between the effects of times and locations on $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations. Outdoor environment has significantly higher levels of $PM_{2.5}$ than indoor environment, and the time of the day has no effect on the level of $PM_{2.5}$.

Based on the result, indoor fitness centers are a better option regarding to the level of PM_{2.5}, compared to outdoor gym.

Due to the limitations of time and equipment supply, further experiments and studies of this topic are highly advised in order to deliver a <u>dependable</u> result

References

- Aaron J. Cohen, H. Ross Anderson, Bart Ostro, Kiran Dev Pandey, Michal Krzyzanowski, Nino Künzli, Kersten Gutschmidt, Arden Pope, Isabelle Romieu, Jonathan M. Samet & Kirk Smith. (2005). The Global Burden of Disease Due to Outdoor Air Pollution. *Journal of Toxicology and Environmental Health. Part A, 68*:13-14, 1301-1307. doi: 10.1080/15287390590936166
- *A brief guide to mold, moisture, and your home*. (2002). Washington, DC (1200 Pennsylvania Ave., Washington 20460): U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Air and Radiation, Indoor Environments Division.
- Alves, C. A., Calvo, A. I., Castro, A., Fraile, R., Evtyugina, M., & Bate-Epey, E. F. (2013). Indoor Air Quality in Two University Sports Facilities. *Aerosol and Air Quality Research, 13*(6), 1723-1730. doi:10.4209/aaqr.2013.02.0045
- ANSI/ASHRAE Standard 55-2013: Thermal environmental conditions for human occupancy. (2013). Atlanta: ASHRAE.
- Braniš, M., Řezáčová, P., & Domasová, M. (2005). The effect of outdoor air and indoor human activity on mass concentrations of PM₁₀, PM_{2.5}, and PM₁ in a classroom. *Environmental Research,99*(2), 143-149. doi:10.1016/j.envres.2004.12.001

- Buonanno, G., Fuoco, F., & Stabile, L. (2011). Influential parameters on particle exposure of pedestrians in urban microenvironments. *Atmospheric Environment*,45(7), 1434-1443. doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2010.12.015
- Buonanno, G., Fuoco, F., Marini, S., & Stabile, L. (2012). Particle Resuspension in School Gyms during Physical Activities. *Aerosol and Air Quality Research, 12*(5), 803-813. doi:10.4209/aaqr.2011.11.0209
- Canha, N., Almeida, M., Freitas, M. D., Almeida, S. M., & Wolterbeek, H. T. (2011). Seasonal variation of total particulate matter and children respiratory diseases at Lisbon primary schools using passive methods. *Procedia Environmental Sciences*, *4*, 170-183. doi:10.1016/j.proenv.2011.03.021
- Carlisle, A. J. (2001). Exercise and outdoor ambient air pollution. *British Journal of Sports Medicine*, *35*(4), 214-222. doi:10.1136/bjsm.35.4.214
- CDC Indoor Environmental Quality: Building Ventalation Resources NIOSH Workplace Safety and Health Topic. (n.d.). Retrieved May 29, 2019, from https://www.cdc.gov/niosh/topics/indoorenv/temperature.html
- Challoner, A., & Gill, L. (2014). Indoor/outdoor air pollution relationships in ten commercial buildings: PM_{2.5} and NO₂. *Building and Environment, 80,* 159-173. doi:10.1016/j.buildenv.2014.05.032
- Chao, C. Y., & Wong, K. K. (2002). Residential indoor PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5} in Hong Kong and the elemental composition. *Atmospheric Environment*, *36*(2), 265-277. doi:10.1016/s1352-2310(01)00411-3

- Chen, C., & Zhao, B. (2011). Review of relationship between indoor and outdoor particles: I/O ratio, infiltration factor and penetration factor. *Atmospheric Environment*, *45*(2), 275-288. doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2010.09.048
- Choi, D. H., & Kang, D. H. (2017). Infiltration of Ambient PM_{2.5} through Building Envelope in Apartment Housing Units in Korea. *Aerosol and Air Quality Research*,17(2), 598-607. doi:10.4209/aaqr.2016.06.0287
- Cohen, A. J., Anderson, H. R., Ostro, B., Pandey, K. D., Krzyzanowski, M., Künzli, N., Gutschmidt, K., Pope, A., Romieu, I., Samet, J. M., Smith, K. (2005). The Global Burden of Disease Due to Outdoor Air Pollution. *Journal of Toxicology and Environmental Health, Part A,68*(13-14), 1301-1307. doi:10.1080/15287390590936166
- Coon, J. T., Boddy, K., Stein, K., Whear, R., Barton, J., & Depledge, M. H. (2011). Does Participating in Physical Activity in Outdoor Natural Environments Have a Greater Effect on Physical and Mental Wellbeing than Physical Activity Indoors?
 A Systematic Review. *Environmental Science & Technology*, 45(5), 1761-1772. doi:10.1021/es102947t
- CU Sports Complex. (n.d.). Retrieved March 1, 2019, from https://www.chula.ac.th/en/cu-services/creative-space/cu-sports-complex/

- Daigle, C. C., Chalupa, D. C., Gibb, F. R., Morrow, P. E., Oberdörster, G., Utell, M. J., & Frampton, M. W. (2003). Ultrafine Particle Deposition in Humans During Rest and Exercise. *Inhalation Toxicology*, *15*(6), 539-552. doi:10.1080/08958370304468
- Diapouli, E., Chaloulakou, A., Mihalopoulos, N., & Spyrellis, N. (2007). Indoor and outdoor PM mass and number concentrations at schools in the Athens area. *Environmental Monitoring and Assessment,136*(1-3), 13-20. doi:10.1007/s10661-007-9724-0
- Fellin, R. E., Manal, K., & Davis, I. S. (2010). Comparison of Lower Extremity Kinematic Curves during Overground and Treadmill Running. *Journal of Applied Biomechanics, 26*(4), 407-414. doi:10.1123/jab.26.4.407
- Fromme, H., Twardella, D., Dietrich, S., Heitmann, D., Schierl, R., Liebl, B., & Rüden, H. (2007). Particulate matter in the indoor air of classrooms—exploratory results from Munich and surrounding area. *Atmospheric Environment,41*(4), 854-866. doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2006.08.053
- Fromme, H., Diemer, J., Dietrich, S., Cyrys, J., Heinrich, J., Lang, W., Kiranoglu, M., Twardella, D. (2008). Chemical and morphological properties of particulate matter (PM₁₀, PM_{2.5}) in school classrooms and outdoor air. *Atmospheric Environment,42*(27), 6597-6605. doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2008.04.047

- Hernandez, G., Berry, T., Wallis, S. L., & Poyner, D. (2017). Temperature and humidity effects on particulate matter concentrations in a Sub-Tropical Climate During Winter. doi:10.7763/IPCBEE.2017.V102.10.
- Hänninen, O., Lebret, E., Ilacqua, V., Katsouyanni, K., Künzli, N., Srám, R., & Jantunen,
 M. (2004). Infiltration of ambient PM_{2.5} and levels of indoor generated non-ETS
 PM_{2.5} in residences of four European cities. *Atmospheric Environment, 38*(37),
 6411-6423. doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2004.07.015
- Honjo, T. (2009). Thermal comfort in outdoor environment. Global Environment Research, *13*. Retrieved May 29, 2019, from https://www.researchgate.net/publication/228521038_Thermal_Comfort_in_O utdoor Environment/citation/download.

Humidity. (n.d.). Retrieved June 11, 2019, from https://climate.ncsu.edu/edu/Humidity

- Johnston, K., & Yeung, O. M. (2018). *Global wellness economy monitor october 2018*. Miami, Florida: Global Wellness Institute. Retrieved from https://globalwellnessinstitute.org.
- Kerr, J., Sallis, J. F., Saelens, B. E., Cain, K. L., Conway, T. L., Frank, L. D., & King, A. C. (2012). Outdoor physical activity and self rated health in older adults living in two regions of the U.S. *International Journal of Behavioral Nutrition and Physical Activity*, 9(1), 89. doi:10.1186/1479-5868-9-89

- Li, Z., Wen, Q., & Zhang, R. (2017). Sources, health effects and control strategies of indoor fine particulate matter (PM_{2.5}): A review. *Science of The Total Environment, 586*, 610-622. doi:10.1016/j.scitotenv.2017.02.029
- Logan, A. C., & Selhub, E. M. (2012). Vis Medicatrix naturae: Does nature "minister to the mind"? *BioPsychoSocial Medicine*, 6(1), 11. doi:10.1186/1751-0759-6-11
- Lou, C., Liu, H., Li, Y., Peng, Y., Wang, J., & Dai, L. (2017). Relationships of relative humidity with PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀ in the Yangtze River Delta, China. *Environmental Monitoring and Assessment,189*(11). doi:10.1007/s10661-017-6281-z
- Massey, D., Masih, J., Kulshrestha, A., Habil, M., & Taneja, A. (2009). Indoor/outdoor relationship of fine particles less than 2.5µm (PM_{2.5}) in residential homes locations in central Indian region. *Building and Environment, 44*(10), 2037-2045. doi:10.1016/j.buildenv.2009.02.010
- Massey, D., Kulshrestha, A., Masih, J., & Taneja, A. (2012). Seasonal trends of PM₁₀, PM_{5.0}, PM_{2.5} & PM_{1.0} in indoor and outdoor environments of residential homes located in North-Central India. *Building and Environment,47*, 223-231. doi:10.1016/j.buildenv.2011.07.018
- NCD Alliance. (2016, May 9). Retrieved February 20, 2019, from https://ncdalliance.org/news-events/blog/the-4th-leading-cause-of-deathworldwide-physical-inactivity-is-an-urgent-public-health-priority
- Personal Trainer and Group Fitness Instructor Certifications. (n.d.). Retrieved from https://www.ifafitness.com/health/temperature.htm

- PM_{2.5} particles in air | Environment Protection Authority Victoria | EPA Victoria. (2018, August 27). Retrieved February 23, 2019, from https://www.epa.vic.gov.au/yourenvironment/air/air-pollution/pm25-particles-in-air
- Ramos, C., Wolterbeek, H., & Almeida, S. (2014). Exposure to indoor air pollutants during physical activity in fitness centers. *Building and Environment, 82*, 349-360. doi:10.1016/j.buildenv.2014.08.026
- Rivas, I., Viana, M., Moreno, T., Bouso, L., Pandolfi, M., Alvarez-Pedrerol, M., Forns, J.,
 Alastuey, A., Sunyer, J., Querol, X. (2015). Outdoor infiltration and indoor contribution of UFP and BC, OC, secondary inorganic ions and metals in PM_{2.5}
 in schools. *Atmospheric Environment*, 1 0 6 , 1 2 9 1 3 8 .
 doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2015.01.055
- Roosbroeck, S. V., Jacobs, J., Janssen, N. A., Oldenwening, M., Hoek, G., & Brunekreef,
 B. (2007). Long-term personal exposure to PM_{2.5}, soot and NO_x in children attending schools located near busy roads, a validation study. *Atmospheric Environment*,41(16), 3381-3394. doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2006.12.023
- Seppanen, O. A., Fisk, W. J., & Mendell, M. J. (1999). Association of Ventilation Rates and CO₂ Concentrations with Health and Other Responses in Commercial and Institutional Buildings. *Indoor Air, 9*(4), 226-252. doi:10.1111/j.1600-0668.1999.00003.x

Taylor, R. (1990). Interpretation of the Correlation Coefficient: A Basic Review. JournalofDiagnosticMedicalSonography,6(1),35-39.doi:10.1177/875647939000600106

- Wallace, J., & Kanaroglou, P. (2009). The effect of temperature inversions on groundlevel nitrogen dioxide (NO₂) and fine particulate matter (PM_{2.5}) using temperature profiles from the Atmospheric Infrared Sounder (AIRS). *Science of The Total Environment,407*(18), 5085-5095. doi:10.1016/j.scitotenv.2009.05.050
- Wang, X., Bi, X., Sheng, G., & Fu, J. (2006). Hospital indoor PM₁₀/PM_{2.5} and associated trace elements in Guangzhou, China. *Science of The Total Environment,366*(1), 124-135. doi:10.1016/j.scitotenv.2005.09.004
- Wichmann, J., Lind, T., Nilsson, M., & Bellander, T. (2010). PM_{2.5}, soot and NO₂ indoor–outdoor relationships at homes, pre-schools and schools in Stockholm,
 Sweden. *Atmospheric Environment*,44(36), 4536-4544.
 doi:10.1016/j.atmosenv.2010.08.023
- Yu, L., Wang, G., Zhang, R., Zhang, L., Song, Y., Wu, B., Chu, J. (2013). Characterization and Source Apportionment of PM_{2.5} in an Urban Environment in Beijing. *Aerosol and Air Quality Research*, *13*(2), 574-583. doi:10.4209/aaqr.2012.07.0192
- Zhou, Z., Liu, Y., Yuan, J., Zuo, J., Chen, G., Xu, L., & Rameezdeen, R. (2016). Indoor
 PM_{2.5} concentrations in residential buildings during a severely polluted winter:
 A case study in Tianjin, China. *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews,64*,
 372-381. doi:10.1016/j.rser.2016.06.018

BIOGRAPHY

Name	Mister Sorakit Boonwirut
Date of birth	31 August 1996
Email	Boonwirut.s@gmail.com
Phone number	+66844649248
Address	111/124 Nakhon Sawan Road, Pom Prab Sattru Pai,
	Bangkok, Thailand 10100
Education	Bachelor of Science in Environmental Science, Faculty
	of Science, Chulalongkorn University, Bangkok, Thailand